CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cabinet** held on Monday, 3rd October, 2011 in Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor R Domleo (Vice-Chairman) in the Chair

Councillors Rachel Bailey, D Brown, H Gaddum, P Mason, R Menlove and M Jones.

Councillors in attendance:

G Baxendale, J Clowes, R Fletcher, P Groves, L Jeuda, S Jones, B Murphy, A Thwaite and S Wilkinson.

Officers in attendance:

Chief Executive, Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, Director of Finance and Business Services, Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development, ICT Manager, Strategic Director (Children, Families and Adults) and Strategic Director (Places Organisational Capacity).

59 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors W Fitzgerald and J Macrae.

60 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

61 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

Charlotte Peters Rock spoke in respect of the changes in the provision of Adult Social Care Services currently taking place in Cheshire East and questioned why (1) the public had not been able to attend a recent meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee at which she had intended to ask a number of questions and (2) why, when it had been agreed that meetings of that Committee would be held bi-monthly had none been held since 28 July 2011.

Although the question had not been received in advance of the meeting the Chairman informed her that whilst meetings of that Committee were open to the public there were occasions when all Committees needed to meet informally for planning purposes. The meeting that had originally been set for July had been used for such a purpose, it was an error that it had been shown as being open to the public and he apologised for the confusion this had caused.

62 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2011 be approved as a correct record.

63 KEY DECISION 17 - CARERS STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Consideration was given to the development and implementation of the Carers Strategy which had been created following a series of consultation events held across Cheshire East and incorporated national drivers for Carers and legislation.

The endorsement of the Strategy would demonstrate the commitment of the Council across all directorates for the support of Carers and their families, formally record the appreciation of the work they did, and recognize this contribution as a vital part of the overall approach of delivering better outcomes to the citizens of Cheshire East.

RESOLVED

That the Strategy and Implementation Plan be endorsed.

64 ICT STRATEGY 2011-12

Consideration was given to the Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Strategy for 2011-12. The Strategy was reviewed and updated annually to ensure it remained in line with corporate objectives and improving technologies and summarised how this would be achieved by the ICT Strategy Team in conjunction with ICT Shared Services, partners and external providers.

RESOLVED

That the ICT Strategy for 2011-12 be endorsed.

65 NOTICE OF MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS S JONES AND R FLETCHER

At the meeting of the Council on 21 July 2011 Councillors R Fletcher and S Jones had submitted a Notice of Motion on the capacity of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to carry out its functions effectively.

The report addressed how the Council might respond to the issues raised. In discussing the most appropriate body to investigate the position in Cheshire East, and in order to avoid any duplication of work by the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee, an amendment was proposed to the decision requested whereby the matter be referred to the Safeguarding Adults Board *in conjunction with the Adult Scrutiny Committee.* The amendment was agreed.

RESOLVED

That the matter be referred to the Safeguarding Adults Board, in conjunction with the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee, with a view to them examining the matter and reporting back on

- The effectiveness of arrangements in Cheshire East between the Councils own a adult safeguarding function and that of the Care Quality Commission
- How well safeguarding provision has responded to personalisation
- The trends in safeguarding activity and the factors affecting it.
- Whether there are deficits in the arrangements such as to make the representations suggested in the motion necessary.

66 DRAFT NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

Consideration was given to a report on the draft National Planning Policy Framework which would replace all current Planning Policy Statements; the report outlined some of the issues it raised for planning in Cheshire East and suggested a response to be made by the Council to the current consultation.

The proposed response, detailed in Appendix 1 of the report, had been considered by the Strategic Planning Board at its meeting on 28 September 2011; it was reported that Board had supported the draft response but made the following additional comments:

- That the response should say more about the importance of agriculture as a producer of food and as an important business and that the role of agricultural land should be given greater prominence in the debate over the development of land.
- That wherever possible officers will suggest new wording to accompany our comments of concern. It is considered that comments will carry more weight if positive wording is put forward in some cases.

Cabinet agreed that these comments should be incorporated into the response and, in addition, that the section in the covering response entitled 'The Favourable Presumption and Plans under preparation' should be expanded to include:

• That local plans remain protected until such time as the new National Planning Policy Framwork is in place, and

• That information be included on the number of plans currently approved and in the pipeline awaiting implemention.

RESOLVED

That Council be recommended to approve the consultation response detailed in Appendix 1 of the report, subject to the inclusion of the following comments made by the Strategic Planning Board at its meeting on 28 September, and by the Cabinet.

- That the response should say more about the importance of agriculture as a producer of food and as an important business and that the role of agricultural land should be given greater prominence in the debate over the development of land.
- That wherever possible officers will suggest new wording to accompany our comments of concern. It is considered that comments will carry more weight if positive wording is put forward in some cases.
- That local plans remain protected until such time as the new National Planning Policy Framwork is in place.
- That information be included on the number of plans currently approved and in the pipeline awaiting implemention.

67 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

68 MANAGING WORKFORCE CHANGE

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development.

RESOLVED

That Cabinet supports the decision of the Chief Executive to release the employees whose roles are listed at 1 to 4 of Appendix A of the report

under the arrangements agreed in relation to voluntary severance provisions for employees in the Council.

That Cabinet notes the employee listed at 5 of Appendix A of the report, whose voluntary severance was approved by the Procurement, Assets and Shared Services Portfolio Holder under the terms of his delegated powers, in response to an urgent request from management.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.55 pm

(none)